
CLATSOP COUNTY 
Trans. & Dvlp. Srvcs., Planning Division 
800 Exchange Street, Suite 100 
Astoria, OR 97103 

www.co.clatsop.or.us 
ph: 503-325-8611 
fx:503-338-3666 
em: comdev@co.clatsop.or.us 

 
SOUTHWEST COASTAL DESIGN REVIEW / CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, June 16, 2010 @ 6:00 P.M. Arch Cape Fire Hall, 79816 E Beach Road 

 
REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING – 6 P.M. 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER (George Cerelli, Chairperson) 6:00 p.m. 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. BUSINESS FROM THE PUBLIC - This is an opportunity for anyone to give a brief 
presentation (3 minutes or less) to the Committee on any land use planning issue or county 
concern that is not on the agenda. 

4. CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES: 

 January 19, 2010 Design Review Minutes 
 February 3, 2010 Design Review Minutes 
 February 17, 2010 Design Review Minutes 
 March 26, 2010 Public Forum 
 April 7, 2010 Design Review Minutes 
 May 7, 2010 Design Review Minutes 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR / MINOR REVIEW ITEMS  

 July 23, 2010 Public Hearing w/ Planning Commission Arch Cape Fire Hall  

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS / MAJOR DESIGN REVIEW: 
 Reiling – Minor Design Review presented by Arthur (Larry) Reiling. The applicant is 

proposing to expand an existing deck on tax lot 1700. The applicant has submitted a plot 
plan indicating the impact area and illustrating the expansion. 

7. OTHER DISCUSSION 
 This is a chance for the committee to discuss and invite testimony from outside agents 

regarding topics of interest. 

8. ADJOURN 

http://www.co.clatsop.or.us/
mailto:comdev@co.clatsop.or.us


 



 
MINUTES FROM THE SOUTHWEST COASTAL DESIGN REVIEW/CITIZEN ADVISORY 

COMMITTEE MEETING HELD January 19, 2010, at 6:00 PM 
 

Chairman George Cerelli called the meeting to order at 6:05 PM. 
 
Members present:  George Cerelli (GC), John Mersereau (JM), Debra Birkby (DB), Richard 
D'Onofrio (RD).  Linda Murray and Tod Lundy were excused.   Staff present:  Michael Weston 
(MW). 
 
Business from the Public: 
 
There were no presentations from the public. 
 
Consideration of Minutes: 
 
  Minutes of September 16, 2009, November 18, 2009, and December 15, 2009 – DB 
moved to adopt the Minutes as read, adding that the Conditions of Approval should be stated 
within.  JM seconded the Motion.   
 
Consent Calendar/Minor Review Items: 
  
 Reese – Minor Design Review. 
 
  MW presented the information, stating that the Reese’s built and expanded a deck  
  at their residence, doing so without proper permits.  MW stated that the Reese’s 
  are in the process of obtaining proper permits and that their neighbor to the east, 
  Ray Gonzalez, had sent a letter expressing his belief that the deck partially  
  obstructed his ocean view.   
   

After further discussion, the committee determined that the drawings submitted  
  were not accurate.  The committee recommended that the Reese’s submit an 
  accurate plan/drawing of what was actually done.  This matter will be 
  continued on February 3, 2010, at the regular DRB meeting. 
 
 4:00 PM, February 3, 2010 – Work Session (Code Revisions) 
 6:00 PM, February 3, 2010   Regular Design Review meeting 
 
Public Hearings/Major Design Review 
 
 There were no items at this time. 
 
Presentations 
 
 The SW Coastal CAC subcommittee, Arch Cape Options Committee, presented a Power 
 Point addressing concerns and proposed resolutions gathered from the community  



 meeting held on April 29, 2009.  Committee member, Mike Manzulli (MM), chaired the 
presentation, asking for specific feedback on each slide from the DRB/CAC, as this 
committee is a subcommittee of the DRB/CAC.  After a lengthy discussion regarding 
intent, history, previous efforts, county finances and county function, changing county 
policy and the community’s concerns, it was recommended that the following revisions 
be made: 

• Slide #11:  shift authority from the Planning Commission to the DRB. 
DRB shall have authority to render decisions as final (same as a 2A 
Hearing Officer); will have to draft Appeals language – refer to Ords 
2.020, 2.025 and 2.030.  Draft our language the same way so that the DRB 
will fall under these guidelines.  The final say on Minor Hearing Matters 
 will be with the DRB; the County will still hear Appeals.  The emphasis  
on the presentation to the Board will be financial.  DB will provide  
specific DRB recommendations that have been reversed. 
 
• Slide #12:  Rewrite as solution-oriented rather than blaming; we want 

to protect our community so (same) things don’t happen in the future.  
We can provide these services and save the County money. 
Bullet should say “developers can ignore County’s…” delete “and 
do…” 
 

• Slide #18:  Rewrite first bullet for language 
 

• Slide #21:  Rewrite third bullet –“ ORS requires…” 
 

The Arch Cape Options Committee will revise the Power Point as directed by the 
DRB/CAC.  The DRB will review the revisions.  MM stated that the plan was for the 
Options Committee is to meet with Robert Mushen and then the community as a whole. 
MM also requested that no one who receives the Power Point as a PDF email forward it 
on to anyone. 
 
Other Discussion 
 
 DB brought up the subject of the SDRO expansion, citing specifically that she has  
 been told by Castle Rock Estates and the Fire Department that they do not fall  
 under the DRB/CAC.  MW stated that they are, indeed, within the Site Design  
 Overlay and that the entire rural community should be contained within the DRB, 

adding that the above-entities have not gone through the code, map, or zoning 
amendment proceeses.  MW will get copies of the SDRO overlay maps to the 
DRB and will check on four lots that are not included in the overlay. 
 
DB stated that she had been asked by a committee member (SM) if the DRB 
would be the appropriate forum to address the possibility of a commercial water 
rate, stating that he would prefer to keep the discussion local and not involve 
outside agencies.  SM has retained legal counsel; Mike Manzulli (MM) is 
representing 



the Water District.  MM stated that Special Districts has the authority to render 
the decision and that the Water District is waiting to hear back.  Tom Merrell 
asked for community input regarding a commercial rate structure, advising that 
the next Water District meeting is on February 12, 2010, at 6:00 PM.  DB thought 
that the DRB would not be able to render an opinion on this matter and MW said 
this was out of his purview.  JM stated that, in his opinion, the community, as a 
whole, would be appalled at a commercial break on water rates. 

   
 Meeting adjourned at 7:47 PM 
  
 
 



 



 
MINUTES FROM THE SOUTHWEST COASTAL DESIGN REVIEW/CITIZEN ADVISORY 

COMMITTEE MEETING HELD February 3, 2010, at 6:00 PM 
 

Chairman George Cerelli called the meeting to order at 6:05 PM 
 
Members present:  George Cerelli (GC), Debra Birkby (DB), Linda Murray (LM), Richard 
D'Onofrio (RD) and Tod Lundy (TL).  Staff present:  Michael Weston (MW).  JM was excused; 
SM arrived late. 
 
Business from the Public: 
 
There were no presentations from the public. 
 
Consideration of Minutes: 
 
There were no Minutes to be considered at this time. 
  
Consent Calendar/Minor Review Items: 
  
 Reese – The applicant has replaced a previously existing deck without permits and 
enclosed the railing.  The application and documentation was provided for review.  As the 
previous application was difficult to read, MW redrew the lines for ease in reading  The 
Applicant presented a new Site Plan and Evidence. MW reiterated that there was one comment 
received from Ray Gonzalez (RG). MW stated that County staff recommended a different kind 
of siding to reduce level of blockage of ocean view as per precedent and added that the Applicant 
is within his right to build a deck there; but that the question is the protection of ocean view with 
the type of siding used.  Mr. Reese stated that the deck had been in need of serious repair for 
some time and that the portion they added was the part in contention.  The Building Department 
told him that it wasn’t a repair; but something new.  Mr. Reese said he couldn’t argue with that.  
As to the protection of RG’s view:  Mr. Reese stated that RG doesn’t have a lot of ocean view 
anyway; but that he (Reese) will satisfy what needs to be done per the DRB and County’s 
recommendations and that he is in the process of obtaining the necessary permits.  LM asked if 
the DRB has any right to regulate the siding on a deck.  MW said the DRB could, under the 
protection of ocean views.  A discussion followed concerning the ocean view from RG’s 
property.  RD said RG’s view is underneath the Reese’s.  MW stated there isn’t much of an 
ocean view; but it needs to be protected and recommended a see-through railing around the end 
of the house and not enclose the storage space underneath the deck.  DB moved that the project 
be approved.  RD seconded the Motion.  The Motion carried.   
 
  
 February 17, 2010, at 6:00 pm – next regularly scheduled Design Review meeting.   
 
Public Hearings/Major Design Review 
 
There were none at this time. 



Other Discussion 
 
DB stated that the Power Point Presentation from Arch Cape Growth Options would be 
presented at a public meeting in the near future.  In response to his questions, a brief discussion 
followed in which the formation and purpose of this committee was explained to SM.  DB said 
that AC Growth Options is a sub-committee of the SWCAC and that she is the liaison between 
the groups.  SM inquired as to what issues had been raised by the community and DB gave a 
brief history of those, including roads, drainage, and the fact that the Planning Commission 
doesn’t listen to the citizens of Arch Cape.  SM stated that he isn’t really satisfied that the 
SWCAC can disassociate themselves with ACGO and expressed concern that this sub-committee 
will “go rogue.”  DB reiterated that ACGO is a sub-committee of the SWCAC and that all Arch 
Cape citizens had the opportunity to attend and participate in the discussion at the meeting in 
April, 2009. 
 
 Meeting adjourned at 7:50 PM 
  
 
 



 
MINUTES FROM THE SOUTHWEST COASTAL DESIGN REVIEW/CITIZEN ADVISORY 

COMMITTEE MEETING HELD February 17, 2010, at 6:00 PM 
 

Chairman George Cerelli called the meeting to order at 6:05 PM 
 
Members present:  George Cerelli (GC), John Mersereau (JM), Debra Birkby (DB), Linda 
Murray (LM), Richard D'Onofrio (RD), Tod Lundy (TL) and Steve Malkowski (SM).  Staff 
present:  Michael Weston (MW). 
 
Business from the Public: 
 
There were no presentations from the public. 
 
Consideration of Minutes: 
 
 December 15, 2009 – SM moved, LM seconded.  Motion carried. 
  
Consent Calendar/Minor Review Items: 
  
 Grimm – Applicant is requesting authorization to modify the existing roofline over their 
covered parking space and storage unit.  The Proposal will follow the existing roofline; no 
additional square footage is proposed.  Contractor Robert Wood, for the owners, stated that they 
will be removing a deck and creating stairs as a safety egress and as a way to go from the first to 
second floors without going outside the house.  He added that they are not changing anything, 
just repairing a bad roof and rebuilding a deck for safety reasons.   
 TL asked how would  they know if the Grimms’ were turning the residence into a duplex 
and there is not enough information to say it is not a duplex.  MW stated that 15,000 square feet 
is needed for a duplex and if there were two stoves it would become a code violation and a 
planning violation if it were being used as a duplex.  By allowing the stairs MW said that would 
show a clear separation of units.  DB moved that permission be granted for alteration to the 
roof as originally applied for; but no stairs.  LM seconded.  6 votes for, 1 opposed.  Motion 
carried. 
  
 March 12, 2010 – Special Public Meeting and Community Forum “Ordinance  
 Revisions” 6:00 pm.   
 
Public Hearings/Major Design Review 
 
 Tenneson  - Applicant is proposing to replace the existing dwelling on Tax Lot 4400 
with a  new two-story structure reusing the previous foundation with minor expansions to the 
footprint.  MW stated that there are no real soil disturbances, no tree removals and that the 
applicant will replant any removed vegetation. TL moved the application be approved.  DB 
amended the Motion to include the condition “upon successful recording of one lot” (Tax 
Lots 4300 and 4400 would be combined as one.)  RD seconded; Motion carried. 
 



 Kinch – The applicant is proposing to construct a new single family dwelling on Tax Lot 
3404.  The applicant has submitted tree plan but has advised staff that they will be reconstructing 
the approach to the house and will be modifying the existing plan.  MW presented the proposal, 
stating that there is room for improvement – preservation of landscape, drainage and tree 
removal need to be addressed.  A lengthy discussion followed in which several proposals were 
put forth to Mr. Kinch in order to address these issues.  These included flipping the house, 
reconfiguring the driveway, and diverting the runoff to the highway drainage ditches.  Concern 
was expressed by the Board that the house is sitting in a gully; to which Mr. Kinch replied that  
the amount of concrete required to raise the foundation would be too costly for him, as would a 
custom-built home.  He did state that the north side of his lot will remain the same and that he is 
installing a bios wail, adding that he would leave whatever he could on the west side to control 
run-off.  Mike Manzulli expressed concern that trees are becoming a larger issues as the eastside 
of Arch Cape is developed and that trees are often not mapped.  Mr. Manzulli asked what the 
DRB required as a landscape plan.  DB stated that they have attempting to address this.   
 
As a result of the discussion, trees to be saved were circled on the map and marked as Exhibit A 
(1).  TL moved that approval be granted on the condition that the trees identified in 
Exhibit A (1) be saved, the driveway be realigned, that as much vegetation as possible be 
preserved and the vegetation that is removed be replanted with natural vegetation.  DB 
seconded.  Motion carried. 
 
Other Discussion 
  
DB asked MW if he had received any feedback from the Planning Commission regarding his 
letter to Castle Rock Estates.  MW stated he had not received anything to date.  The consensus 
was that Castle Rock Estates should be sent a letter from the Board of Commissioners instructing 
them to comply. 
   
 Meeting adjourned at 7:50 PM 
  
 
 



 
 SOUTHWEST COASTAL DESIGN REVIEW/CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

PUBLIC FORUM held MARCH 26, 2010, at 6:00 PM 
re ZONING ORDINANCE REVISIONS 

 
 

Present:  George Cerelli (GC), Debra Birkby (DB), John Mersereau (JM), Linda Murray (LM), 
Richard D’Onofrio (RD), Tod Lundy TL) and Steve Malkowski (SM).  Staff present:  Mike 
Weston (MW) and Duane Cole (DC) 
 
MW presented an overview of the adjustments and changes made to existing Zoning Ordinances.  
These included clarification of guest houses versus accessory dwelling units, tree removal for the 
purpose of safety and landscape and placing a cap on the number of Short Term Rentals in Arch 
Cape to preserve the rural community ideal.  He also mentioned the ability to build a road under 
a Type 2 Conditional Use permit, thereby alleviating the need to present building plans prior to 
building the road; exterior lighting to be of a full cut-off design as defined in Clatsop County’s 
Zoning Ordinance Section 1.030 and vegetative hedges and fences that impede or have the 
potential to impede views shall be maintained at or below 6 feet – hedges and fences extending 
beyond ocean front set back shall be maintained at or below 4 feet. 
 
Audience comments: 
 
Bob Cerelli (BC) expressed his concern that the proposed 30% cap on STR’s was a proposal and 
now sounded like a fact.  He added that while he is opposed to STR’s, there is inequity in 
allowing 30% of the homeowners to derive income from their properties, when the other 70% 
cannot. He proposed a rotating list of three years. 
 
A discussion followed whether B&B’s be included in the 30% cap.  Bob Tarr (BT) raised the 
question of a facility that advertises online as an Inn but is a Bed and Breakfast.  MW stated that 
code enforcement is difficult and not as progressive “as we like.”  He added that there would be 
a ticket system of $100 per day with a maximum of $20,000, at which time a lien would be filed 
against the property.  Various members of the audience expressed their personal experiences 
with Short Term rentals in their own neighborhoods.  The majority of these were negative. 
 
Audience comments regarding the inclusion of B&B’s in STR”s:  audience member felt they 
were more like a residence.; that STR’s were not owner-occupied:  guests were noisy, outside 
late at night, impacted traffic and full-time residents’ quality of life.  Concern was expressed as 
to the drain on the community’s resources, especially water - therefore B& B’s should be 
included.  A resident felt the cap would be unfair –“ sounds great if I’m grandfathered in; but not 
fair if I want to and can’t because I was late to the party.”  Discussion followed regarding the 
impact of traffic from homes with multiple owners.  JM wondered if a cap was the right thing to 
do. 
 
MW stated that he felt that the number of STR’s (currently at 50 registered) would double when 
people hear of any cap.  DB added that there is no longer a restriction on water/sewer hook-ups.  



TL asked for a show of hands at which percentage they would like to see the cap.  (Note to 
reader:  please give a verbal result when conducting a straw poll.) 
 
Audience comments regarding tree preservation included clarification of removing a tree in the 
public right of way.  MW explained that the homeowner would be required to get a permit for a 
minor tree removal and would have to get permission to work in the public right of way, i.e. the 
tree belongs to the county.  A new development would be required to present a tree preservation 
plan that would meet DRB standards.  There was a comment from the audience that the CAC is 
in a difficult position to review the preservation of landscape.   
 
An audience member asked for clarification regarding the definition of a kitchen facility in a 
guesthouse and asked that “hot plate” be stricken for safety reasons and that it was safer to have 
an apartment sized range.  MW duly noted; but queried as to what to put in its place. 
 
Comments regarding outdoor lighting included a discussion about outdoor switches.  MW stated 
that since lighting can cause offense it is a constant enforcement issue. DB said this issue could 
be remedied by turning off lights when you leave.  An audience member expressed concern that 
an outdoor switch could be turned off by someone with less than honorable intentions about 
wanting the light to be off.  LM added that these issues could often be resolved by speaking with 
ones’ neighbors.  MW stated that language would be added to “all new lighting”; that if someone 
takes offense then the homeowner would be required to put in an outdoor switch.  
 
DB asked Duane Cole (DC) if that state mandated the ruling that room tax collected goes to 
tourism.  DC stated that he hasn’t had the opportunity to review.  DB asked if we have any 
control if it is not state-mandated.  
 
MW stated that the next Public Forum will be on May7th.  There will be another meeting on 
June8th before the Planning Commission.  The community is invited to submit comments prior 
to June 8th.  Those who have submitted comments will have standing and will receive Notice and 
have the opportunity to appeal to LUBA if they so choose.   
 
MW concluded the forum by stating the DRB would meet to make additional modifications.  The 
next public forum will be May 7th . 
 



MINUTES FROM THE SOUTHWEST COASTAL DESIGN REVIEW/CITIZEN ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE MEETING HELD April 7, 2010, at 6:00 PM 

 
Chairman George Cerelli called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM 
 
Members present:  George Cerelli (GC), John Mersereau (JM), Debra Birkby (DB), Linda 
Murray (LM), Richard D'Onofrio (RD) and Tod Lundy (TL).  Staff present:  Michael Weston 
(MW).    Steve Malkowski (SM) absent. 
 
Business from the Public: 
 
  Dale Mosby gave the committee a letter he had written concerning his comments regarding the 
proposed ordinances.  He stated that the letter could be read later.  Bob Tarr stated that he 
thought the STR cap idea was unfair because some homeowners would be able to profit from 
their property and while others could not.  MW said that the board has been discussing this issue 
of a rotating eligibility list. He gave the example that if the cap were at 20%, the homeowner 
could rent out his home for three to five years.  When that time period is up, another 20% would 
be eligible.  MW added that the proposal is a 20% STR  cap with 10% B&B’s.  B&B not subject 
to rotation because they fall under conditional use.  JM added that all  STR’s registered now 
would be grandfathered in and they would lose that standing if the property is sold or if they are 
in violation. – out if they sell or violated.  A female speaker asked if all of the STR’s would be 
notified.  MW replied notification would be via a card in the mails.  Another woman from the 
audience opined that  B&B’s provide a measure of safety to the neighborhood(s) as they are 
owner-occupied and that many of the B&B’s owners are retired with this financial set-up.  Jack 
Hampton (JH), Pres of OR Lodgings, said that he appreciated the grandfather approach and 
asked if the intention was to have a STR permit cut-off time.  MW said that once homeowners 
have notice of the proposed changes, the time is up; that those properties on the list by the end of 
April will be grandfathered in.  Mike Manzulli asked for the definition of a minor tree.  DB 
answered that the group had to omit this discussion due to time constraints; but they will revisit 
and define.  
 
Consideration of Minutes: 
 
There were no Minutes to be considered at this time. 
  
Consent Calendar/Minor Review Items: 
 
April 13, 2010 – Work Session with Planning Commission 
 
April 21, 2010 – Meeting “Ordinance Revisions” 
 
May 7, 2020 – Meeting and Public Forum “Ordinance 10-01” 
 
May 19, 2010 – Work Session – revisions to “Ordinance 10-01” 
 
May 25, 2010 – Work Session with Planning Commission prior to June 8, 2010, Public Forum 



   
Public Hearings/Major Design Review 
 
Lantela – Applicant is proposing to construct a new single family dwelling on Tax Lot 3800.  
Applicant has submitted a plot plan and tree removal plan along with house plans, average grade 
calculations and findings in support of the proposal.  Bill Boone( BB) presented the plans on 
behalf of Ms. Lantela. Tree removal consists of removing 4 trees within the footprint of the 
house and replacing any disturbed vegetation with natural vegetation.  BB stated that the house 
was originally 1600 square feet.  It is now around 2000 square feet or approximately two feet 
wider.  MW stated that County staff believes that the plan conforms with criteria.  BB added that 
it is a simple house with cedar siding fronting Woodland Heights Road.  DB asked BB if he had 
received any feedback from neighbors.  BB said he had not; but had spoken with the neighbor to 
the north.  MW added that he had not received any letters regarding this project.  There was a 
brief discussion regarding drainage on the lot.  BB stated that the creek is down at the bottom of 
the lot and that the natural drainage flows that way.  He added that he would put in dry well if 
that were the recommendation of the DRB. DB asked for any other comments regarding this 
project.  There were none.  TL moved that the project be approved with the re-vegetation with 
indigenous plants within one year of completion, installation of a dry well and repair of all road 
damage.  RD seconded the Motion.  The Motion carried. 
 
 Other Discussion 
   
DB stated that she had two concerns to discuss. 
 

1. The process changing conditional use permits in that only the director is making 
the decision.  The intention of commercial use in Arch Cape is limited and to be 
there to support the community (i.e. grocery store, gas station.)  All of the citizens 
should have the opportunity to provide input.  MW stated that the Arch Cape Inn 
changes could be considered an expansion of commercial use and would have 
required a Design Review under the proposed revisions; additionally there were 
enough questions in the air to trigger a review, additionally under section 
4.104(1B) Any new commercial development proposing new structures should be 
subject to Design Review and that the owner has to get permits for his renovations 
including roads and parking lots.  MW stated that the Arch Cape Inn has changed 
from a three bedroom, owner-occupied Bed & Breakfast to a ten-room hotel.  RD 
pointed out that he has gone from an in house serving facility to a public 
restaurant.  LM asked if he needed a driveway on to the highway if he has ten 
rooms and expressed concerns over traffic safety issues.  JM expressed 
displeasure that this request did not come through Design Review.  MW 
suggested that Design Review Board review the conditional use criteria 5.0 – 
5.030 and see what the Inn did not meet.  LM asked if it would be better to make 
a Motion or write a letter for the Board members to sign.  MW responding to the 
question recommended a letter form and added that the Board should have a 
representative at the Planning Commission meeting and that the DRB can request 
that that the record be left open to respond to new evidence. 

 



2. Concern about the lack of attendance of one of the Board members:  the Board is 
always down a member and has to stop to take the time to bring that person up to 
speed.  RD added that this person does not call the Chair to be excused; but 
occasionally calls the County.  DB stressed the importance that GC needs to know 
if he will have a quorum for the meeting(s).  MW and GC stated that they didn’t 
know that SM was not going to be at this meeting.  The comment was made that 
Board members should be a resident of Arch Cape.  Consensus was reached that 
the matter of attendance is in the Bylaws and that a Bylaws work session is going 
to be scheduled. 

 
   
 Meeting adjourned at 7:15 PM 
  
 
 



 



 
 SOUTHWEST COASTAL DESIGN REVIEW/CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

PUBLIC FORUM held May 7, 2010, at 6:00 PM 
re ZONING ORDINANCE REVISIONS 

 
 

No roll was taken. 
 
Chairman George Cerelli (GC) announced that this forum was a quasi-judicial hearing regarding 
Zoning Ordinance Revisions and asked for the County Staff Report from Mike Weston (MW.)  
There were no objections as to the jurisdiction of the Committee to hear the report. 
 
MW stated that Ordinance 10-01 presents modifications and adjustments to the rural overlay.  He 
presented information regarding accessory dwellings, outdoor lighting, tree removal, road 
development, off-street parking, non-conforming uses in accordance with Oregon revised 
statutes, the removal of the hardship variance and the modification of the percentage cap of Short 
Term Rentals (STR’s) and Bed & Breakfasts.  (The percentage of STR’s would be at a 20% cap 
of the total number of homes.)   MW added that currently there are 50 registered STR’s and the 
cap would allow up to 70 STR’s.  Article 4.104 implements a class system:  Class 1:  those 
STR’s that were registered prior to April 28, 2010.  Post April 28, 2010, those homes would be 
put on a five year rotational list; if there were no openings then they would be put on a wait list. 
Those STR’s registered prior to 4/28/10 would not be subject to rotation as long as they remain 
in good standing, without violation(s).  If a homeowner has a rental unit and an accessory 
dwelling, then one unit would be a long-term rental and one would be a STR. 
 
Comments/Questions from the Audience 
 
GC reminded that audience that if one wishes to speak or present evidence that one needed to 
sign the list. 
 
Dale Mosby stated he would like to be on the record to provide his comments in writing. 
Chris Hartman stated that STR’s bring a lot of revenue to local businesses and that some people 
cannot afford to buy here, and have to rent out their homes in order to afford a home on the 
coast. He didn’t like the fact that the STR cannot be transferred upon the sale of the property.  
Richard D’Onofrio (RD) responded that Arch Cape is a residential area, not a rotating motel and 
that STR’s are, in general, not a part of Arch Cape’s Mission Statement.  Tod Lundy (TL) added 
that the committee had a higher cap; but that the public preferred a lower number. Debra Birkby 
(DB) stated that Arch Cape is not inside an urban growth area like Cannon Beach 
 
Rainey Graham had no comment at this time. 
 
Mr. Hill asked about the stance of the community regarding tree removal.  MW responded that 
the original object of Arch Cape was to create a wooded residential neighborhood and prevent  
clear-cutting and/or logging.  Currently one is not authorized to cut down a tree. The Ordinance 
allows for the removal of a tree with a $79 permit for safety reasons or if it is dead.  If a 
homeowner wants to cut down a tree, the owner can request to do so with an arborist’s statement 



and a plot plan.  MW added that the bottom line is that it will cost approximately $300 to cut 
down a tree.   By definition, a tree has a diameter of six inches or more. DB explained that if a 
project is going before the DRB, a landscape plan is required. The new proposal allows a 
homeowner an avenue to cut down his tree.   
 
Jim Sparks asked about the need to hire a surveyor.  MW stated that if your building is within 2 
feet of building height, you must hire a surveyor to come out after building and recheck the 
height to make sure it’s within the criteria. John Mersereau (JM) added that all of those 
measurements are to be taken from undisturbed ground.  MW said that you should not be filling 
bare land.  DB asked Mr. Sparks if he had an original benchmark and if it was less than 26 feet.  
Mr. Sparks stated he did.   
 
Mike Manzulli: Stated his approval for the ordinance in general, was happy to see the variance 
hardship retained, and was satisfied with the cap on the short term rentals and the 5 year rotation. 
He also stated his concerns regarding tree removal and stated the need for the owner to present 
evidence that the tree was indeed a hazard before it is removed.  
 
Nadia Gardner (NG) stated that she was happy with the number of STR’s and that parking 
issues, parties and rundown homes, often accompany them.  She added that she had no sympathy 
for un-permitted short-term rentals.  Steve Malkowski (SM) stated that there is no mechanism in 
place to address un-permitted STR’s.  MW stated that the cap on STR’s was a goal to maintain 
rural feel of community.  DB commented that illegal STR’s owners are using their rental(s) as a 
tax deduction. It was confirmed that there is a two-week per year time limit that an STR owner 
can use the home for their personal use.   
 
Michelle Delaney confirmed that her STR is grandfathered in.  DB explained that the intent of 
the rotation was not to limit the opportunity to rent your house, but rather to provide an 
opportunity for all residents to rent out their homes while maintaining the provisions of the cap.  
MW explained the good faith clause used in vesting determinations and how that relates to the  
grandfather clause: once you’re notified, you’re considered on notice and you can’t race to beat 
the clock because that would be considered a bad faith effort. SM asked if neighbors near STR’s 
would have the opportunity to comment and he asked the audience if they would like to see the 
illegal STR’s scrutinized because they haven’t been playing by the rules. MW stated that 
currently there is no notification procedure for renewals and implementing that procedure would 
increase the cost significantly.   NG said we need a better enforcement system.  A discussion 
followed regarding Ordinance 4.115, which describes compliance and resolutions.  SM added 
that he was not proposing that sanctions be put on unregistered STR’s. 
 
 Dale Mosby said he was more comfortable with a 0% cap on STR’s.  JM questioned why there 
is a commercial venture going on in a residential area and that property management companies 
control the majority of the STR’s.   
 
A female speaker said she was thrilled that the number of STR’s had been capped and thanked 
the committee for being responsive to the full time residents’ needs. 
 



GC asked for any more testimony.  There being none, GC announced that the public hearing was 
closed. 
 
MW stated that the next Public Hearing would be at 10:00 am ad the Boyington Building at 9th 
and Commercial. 
 
Follow-Up Discussion by Committee Members 
 
MW stated that the committee needed to discuss recommendations of the community and render 
a motion. TL stated that when a house is framed, it is easy to establish height accuracy and that 
the framing could be dropped if the height is found to be over the limit.  He added that this 
would allow the DRB to enforce a rule for a correction to be made without breaking the bank. 
MW stated that he would add a recommendation that the contractor verify height at the framing 
stage prior to the sheathing.  
 
A discussion followed regarding tree removal.   JM said he heard community members state they 
felt the current ordinance was restrictive and costly.  RD felt that there would be deforestation if 
tree removal were too easy.  SM acknowledged the comments of the audience and their feeling 
that the ordinance was extreme and restrictive.  RD discussed the value of the community’s 
coastal life and suggested that the issue of tree removal be left as is and revisited as needed of if 
problems arise. The definition of a tree was reviewed and DB suggested the text be expanded to 
refer to the definition of a tree. 
 
MW told SM that the audience member who was unhappy with the cap on STR’s was from 
Arizona and that Mr. Harrington of the Oregon Lodging Association seemed to be more satisfied 
with 20%/10% cap than with 5 year rotation.  The property management businesses seemed 
happy with grandfather clause.  TL asked if there would be legal review of this ordinance 
revision, specifically addressing the potential problem with creating a class of citizens that has 
more rights than another.  MW stated that there is a process for legal review and he would have 
this done prior to the meeting with the Planning Commission.  SM stated that he had submitted 
written comments from a business standpoint regarding investments lost by setting up an STR 
and then being off of the list due to the five-year rotation.  He felt this was a way of artificially 
eliminating STR’s.  He added that ones’ investment would go away in five years.   RD answered 
that with the rotation list, they can come back.  GC, as Chair, asked for a decision on this matter.   
SM continued, stating the said the STR’s make an investment for repeat investment from the 
same families, which accounts for 40-50% of their business and that is a loss on that investment.  
RD expressed his displeasure that investors dictate to full time residents and that the rights of 
permanent residents are being affected by renters, adding that in Washington State residents have 
the right of quiet enjoyment.  SM countered that if one STR drops off in five years and another 
one appears, the total number of STR’s will not change and that Ordinance 4.115 addresses the 
garbage problem.  GC asked for a motion to close this matter.  DB reiterated that many of these 
things have been discussed at great length at work sessions.  She added that the rotation plan for 
STR’s came out of the community’s concern that it be fair for everyone to be able to rent out 
their home. The limit is so the rural feel of community isn’t changed.  JM said the cap allows all 
homeowners have the opportunity to rent out their own on a short-term basis while keeping 
number of STR’s down.  TL stated that the Committee was following the concerns of the 



community.  SM said that a segment of population needs supplemental income to keep home 
here and believed there would be legal challenges ahead, making a discriminatory argument 
when making a separation in classes of people.  MW stated that the grandfather clause should be 
legal considering past practices. SM recommended that the committee talk to the Oregon 
Lodging Association about the 20% cap.  SM said he was not opposed to RD’s opinion.  Linda 
Murray (LM) expressed her concern that the grandfathered STR’s would eventually disappear.  
RD stated he understands Mr. Hartman’s dilemma, however an STR is a business; that Mr. 
Hartman was not talking about people.  MW stated that the committee should be on good legal 
standing because the land use changes have been well notified in accordance with the ORS, but 
that the Planning Commission could reject their proposals.  SM said that Arch Cape’s hardship 
variance differs from the County’s and this opens the door for the commission to make the 
decision that by default, Arch Cape should be aligned with county.  MW said that the only 
difference in Arch Cape’s STR ordinance is the 20% cap and the five-year rotation. This 
ordinance pertains only to Arch Cape. 
 
The following changes/additions/modifications to the Zoning Ordinance Revisions will include: 
a recommendation that a contractor verify height at the framing stage to verify height. (Page 23); 
language added that tree removal be in accordance with section 1.030 (page 6) and that the tree 
removal issue be reconsidered after one year. 
 
TL moved to recommend approval of the ordinance as revised.  LM seconded the Motion.  Vote:  
5 for and 1 opposed.  The Motion carried.  MW will have legal review done prior to the meeting 
with the Planning Commission. 
 
May 19, 2010 – Next regularly scheduled meeting.  Consensus was reached that the committee 
will decide via email if this meeting will be held.   
 
May 25, 2010 – meeting with Planning Commission  
 
MW will mail a Resolution and Order to Chairman George Cerelli 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:25 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 



 

 
 

          Reiling Staff Evaluation 
                         and 
                   Application  



 



CLATSOP COUNTY 
Trans. & Dvlp. Srvcs., Planning Division 
800 Exchange Street, Suite 100 
Astoria, OR 97103 

www.co.clatsop.or.us 
ph: 503-325-8611 
fx:503-338-3666 
em: comdev@co.clatsop.or.us 

 
 

SOUTHWEST COASTAL DESIGN REVIEW / CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

CRITERIA EVALUATION SHEET – DESIGN REVIEW 
 

 
Applicant:  
 
 
Owner: 
 
 
Property Description: 

 
 

_______________________________ 
_______________________________ 
_______________________________ 

Arthur L Reiling 
17288 SW Ceder Rd 
Lake Oswego, OR 97034 

 
_______________________________ 
_______________________________ 

Same as Above 

_______________________________ 
 
_______________________________ T4N, R10W, S30BB, TL 01700 

DESIGN REVIEW CRITERIA 

1. Relation of Structure to Site: 
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

The proposal satisfies current setback requirements. The applicant states there is 6 feet 4 inches 
between the Southern most edge of the deck and the property line. 

2. Protection of Ocean Views: 
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

The impact upon ocean views are negligible, as the expansion is 2 feet beyond the current 
footprint of the deck and will retain the same style as the rest of the deck. 

3. Preservation of Landscape: 
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

The proposal will not disturb any ground. The expansion is based on the current structure and 
requires no ground work or additional pilings 

4. Buffering and Screening (For Commercial Uses): 
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

Not Applicable to this Request 

5. Vehicle Circulation and Parking: 
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

No additional vehicle circulation or parking is required with this request. 

6. Utility Service: 
_______________________________________________________________________________No new utilities are proposed. 

http://www.co.clatsop.or.us/
mailto:comdev@co.clatsop.or.us


_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

7. Signs: 
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

No signs are proposed with this construction. 

8. Surface Water Drainage: 
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

The development should not affect surface water drainage. The current system should be 
adequate. 

9. Other Criteria for Evaluation: 
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The above-entitled matter came before the Southwest Coastal Design Review and 
Citizen Advisory Committee at its June 16, 2010 meeting for a public hearing and 
consideration of proposal.  
Based upon the evidence and testimony provided by the applicant, planning 
department staff, and the citizens of the area, this committee hereby recommends this 
application be: { Approved, Conditionally Approved, Denied } 
 
Dated this ____ day of June 
 
 

The Southwest Coastal Design Review / 
Citizen Advisory Committee  

 
_________________________________ 
George Cerelli, Chairman Clatsop County 
SW Coastal DR/CA Committee 



 

 
 

        Exhibit 1 -- Public Notice  



Reiling Mailing List

TaxlotKey Year Built Owner_line Owner Address City State Zip Code
41030BB01100 1941 Ward William A 12956 SE 127th Clackamas OR 97015-9386
41030BB02200 1947 Hess-Smith / Smith 1400 SW Davenport St Portland OR 97201
41030BB03600 1935 Morse Greg D/Dorte P 1515 SW Clifton St Portland OR 97201
41030BB02000 2004 Lockwood Living Trust 17096 SW Rivendell Durham OR 97224
41030BB01700 2003 Reiling Arthur L 17288 SW Cedar Rd Lake Oswego OR 97034
41030BB02002 2004 Rall Martin M/Susan D 1818 SW Martha St Portland OR 97239
41030BB03200 1946 DeMonico C A Rev Trust 1/2 int 19508 SW 35th Ct Lake Oswego OR 97034
41030BB03500 1950 Arch Cape Beach House LLC 222 NW Maywood Dr Portland OR 97210
41030BB00900 2006 Onewest Bank FSB 2900 Esperanza Crossing Austin TX 78758
41030BB03700 1942 Powell John / Shirley 2928 Fuhrman Ave E Seattle WA 98102
41030BB03300 1990 Lewis Wesche Colleen 2980 NW Monte Vista Terr Portland OR 97210
41030BB00901 2003 Nielson David / Tobi 31947 W Ocean Ave Arch Cape OR 97102
41030BB01802 1999 Sinnott William P/Kathy M 3715 SE Tolman Portland OR 97202
41030BB03900 1988 Williamson Wayne A / Lois 4137 SW Greenleaf Ct Portland OR 97221
41030BB01803 1997 Kirkby et. al. 4676 Eagle Harbor Dr NE Bainbridge Island WA 98110
41030BB03100 1948 Angel Joseph W II 4900 SW Griffith Dr #269 Beaverton OR 97005
41030BB03800 1985 Richardson Randy / Stephanie 5191 SW Kruse Rd Wilsonville OR 97070
41030BB01801 1966 Delaney Chris R/Michele C 6224 SE 31st Ave Portland OR 97202
41030BB01903 Merck / Ulrich 720 Mandana Blvd Oakland CA 94610
41030BB01800 1994 Kain Thomas J/Patricia O 7518 SE 30th Ave Portland OR 97202
41030BB03400 1958 Wood Michael J/Mary N 80054 Pacific Rd Arch Cape OR 97102
41030BB02100 1942 Hale David / Donna 80065 Pacific Rd Arch Cape OR 97102
41030BB01900 Miller / Hickman 8475 Clearwater Rd Fall Brook CA 92028
41030BB01300 1940 Lewis / Bush 915 Ironwood Ln Fountain Valley CA 92708
41030BB02001 1948 Lockhart Richard I/ Rollande M 9726 S Woodlawn Rd Valley Center KS 67147
41030BB01400 2002 Petrich / Fitzwater PO Box 1182 Cannon Beach OR 97110
41030BB01000 1947 Moody Gary E/Stephany J PO Box 1422 Cannon Beach OR 97110
41030BB01200 1945 Ferguson Bill B/Gloria Tr PO Box 2322 Arizona City AZ 85223
41030BB00801 Egger / Henderson PO Box 243 Wheeler OR 97147

Matt Spangler Steven Malkowski
CREST John Mersereau
Clatsop Soil & Water Tod Lundy
George Cerelli Linda Murray
Debra Birkby Richard D'Onafrio

Mailed June 7, 2010



       Page 1 of 4 

 
Clatsop County Community Development 
Department  
800 Exchange Street, Suite 100,  
Astoria, OR  97103 

 
ph: 503-325-8611
fx: 503-338-3666
em: comdev@co.clatsop.or.us 
www.co.clatsop.or.us  

 

PUBLIC NOTICE FOR AN ISSUE BEFORE THE  
TRANSPORTATION & DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR  

In the matter of a Minor Design Review application for Expansion of an Existing 
Deck submitted by the owner Arthur L. Reiling. The legal description of the Parcel is 

T4N, R10W, § 30BB, TL 01700. 
(For more information see Page 2 of this notice) 

 
 

APRX. DATE OF DECISION:  June 22, 2010 
COMMENT PERIOD:  June 8, 2010 – June 21, 2010 
DESIGN REVIEW HEARING:  June 16, 2010, 6pm Arch Cape Fire Hall 
SEND COMMENTS TO: Public Service Building, 800 Exchange Street, Suite 

100 Astoria, Oregon 97103 
CONTACT PERSON:   Michael Weston II, Clatsop County Planner   

 
 
You are receiving this notice because you either own property within 250 feet of the 
property that serves as the subject of the land use application described in this letter or you 
are considered to be an affected state or federal agency, local government, or special 
district.  A vicinity map for the subject property is attached. 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Clatsop County’s Transportation & Development 
Services have received the land use application described in this letter.  Pursuant to section 
4.100 of the Clatsop County Land Water Development and Use Ordinance a Public 
Hearing is scheduled before the Design Review Committee on Wednesday, June 16, 
2010 and; Pursuant to Section 2.020 of the Clatsop County Land and Water Development 
and Use Ordinance (LWDUO), the Department Director is tentatively scheduled to render 
a decision based on evidence and testimony on Tuesday June 22, 2010 at the Public 
Service Building, 800 Exchange St., Suite 100, Astoria, OR 97103. 
All interested persons are invited to submit testimony & evidence in writing by addressing 
a letter to the Clatsop County Transportation & Development Director, 800 Exchange 
Street, Suite 100, Astoria, OR 97103.  Written comments may also be sent via FAX to 
503-338-3666 or via email to comdev@co.clatsop.or.us.  Written comments must be 
received in this office no later than 4PM on Monday June 21, 2010 in order to be 
considered in the Decision.   
NOTE:  Failure of an issue to be raised in a hearing, in person or by letter, or failure to 
provide statements or evidence sufficient to afford the decision maker an opportunity to 
respond to the issue precludes an appeal based on that issue. 

http://www.co.clatsop.or.us/
mailto:comdev@co.clatsop.or.us


       Page 2 of 4 

 

THE LAND USE APPLICATION DESCRIBED: 

The applicant is requesting Design Review approval for the expansion of a pre-existing 
deck. The structure is located on the south side of the house and will extend an additional 2 
feet into the side yard. Based on the information and site plans provided by the applicant 
the expansion would leave 6’ 4” between the deck and the property line. The expansion 
does not require new pillars or posts and expands the area at the top of the staircase further 
to the left/south. The property is located at 31922 Star Mooring Lane on the corner of 
Pacific and Star Mooring. 

For More Details regarding the Project & Location see pages 3 & 4. 

The following criteria from Clatsop County Land and Water Development and Use 
Ordinance (LWDUO) apply to the request:  § 1.010-1.050 (Definitions), 2.020 (Type II 
Procedure), 2.120 (Procedure for Mailed Notice), 2.230-2.260 (Request for 
Review/Appeal et al), 3.060 (Arch Cape Rural Community Residential Zone), 4.100 (Site 
Development Review Overlay District {SDRO}), and Clatsop County’s Standards 
Document Chapters 1-4.   
 
In addition, the following elements of the Clatsop County Comprehensive Plan apply to 
the request:  Goal 1 (Citizen Involvement), Goal 2 (Land Use Planning), Goal 5 (Natural 
Resources, Scenic and Historic Areas, and Open Spaces), Goal 6 (Air, Water and Land 
Resources Quality), Goal 7 (Natural Hazards), Goal 8 (Recreational Needs), Goal 9 
(Economy), Goal 10 (Housing), Goal 11 (Public Facilities and Services), Goal 12 
(Transportation), Goal 13 (Energy Conservation), and the Southwest Coastal Community 
Plan. 
 
These documents are available for review at the Clatsop County Community Development 
Department office, 800 Exchange Street, Suite 100, Astoria, Oregon and on-line at the 
county’s website, www.co.clatsop.or.us . 
 
A copy of the application, all documents and evidence submitted by or on behalf of the 
applicant and applicable criteria are available for inspection at the Transportation & 
Development Department Office during normal business hours (M-F, 8-5) at no cost and 
will be provided at reasonable cost.   
 
If you have questions about this land use matter or need more information, please contact 
Michael Weston II, Clatsop County Planner, at (503) 325-8611 or via email at 
mweston@co.clatsop.or.us. 
 
Notice to Mortgagee, Lien Holder, Vendor or Seller:  ORS Chapter 215 requires that if 
you receive this notice it must promptly be forwarded to the purchaser. 

http://www.co.clatsop.or.us/
mailto:pwingard@co.clatsop.or.us


Clatsop County Map

6/7/20101in. = 438 ft.
This map was produced using the Clatsop County GIS data. The GIS data is
maintained by the county to support its governmental activities.  The
county is not reponsible for map errors, omissions, misuse or misinterpretation.

 FEMA Flood
      0.2 PCT ANNUAL CHANCE ...
      VE
      AO
      X
 PLS
      PLS
      PLS Townships
 Tax Lot Arrows
 Tax Map
      Water Body
      Creek
      Parcel Boundary
      Supplemental Boundary
      Road R-O-W





 

 
 

        Exhibit 2 -- Application  


































	CLATSOP COUNTY
	SOUTHWEST COASTAL DESIGN REVIEW / CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	Wednesday, June 16, 2010 @ 6:00 P.M. Arch Cape Fire Hall, 79816 E Beach Road

	2010 - 1 -19 DR Minutes.pdf
	Other Discussion

	050710 public forum re zoning ord revisions.pdf
	Comments/Questions from the Audience
	Follow-Up Discussion by Committee Members

	Reiling Mailing LIst.pdf
	Sheet1

	Reiling Evaluation Sheet.pdf
	SOUTHWEST COASTAL DESIGN REVIEW / CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE
	CRITERIA EVALUATION SHEET – DESIGN REVIEW
	Applicant: 
	Owner:
	Property Description:
	DESIGN REVIEW CRITERIA
	The above-entitled matter came before the Southwest Coastal Design Review and Citizen Advisory Committee at its June 16, 2010 meeting for a public hearing and consideration of proposal. 
	Based upon the evidence and testimony provided by the applicant, planning department staff, and the citizens of the area, this committee hereby recommends this application be: { Approved, Conditionally Approved, Denied }


	Blank Page1.pdf
	This Page Left Blank Intentionally 

	Blank Page1.pdf
	This Page Left Blank Intentionally 

	Blank Page1.pdf
	This Page Left Blank Intentionally 




